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RFP 8-13-C005 
 

METROPOLITAN WASHINGTON AIRPORTS AUTHORITY 
 

February 11, 2013 
 

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS 
 

Question 1: Do you have to have a Brokers license to bid? Or can you have a partner that is a 
broker? 

 
Response 1:  The successful broker shall have a valid Brokers license to do business in 

Virginia. 
 
Question 2 What is the estimated revenue? 
 
Response 2: The Total base rent for a five (5) year lease is estimated to be $9.2 million or up 

to $13.5 million with two one-year options.  
 
Question 3:  What is the contract length? 
 
Response 3: The contract term shall be five years with two one-year options to coincide with 

the expected office lease term. 
 
Question 4:   Who was the leasing broker on Phase 1? 
 
Response 4: Cathy Delcoco, Executive Vice President, CBRE | Global Corporate Services.  
 
Question 5:  What was the pricing they submitted? 
 
Response 5: Price was not a factor in the selection of broker services.  Industry standard fees 

were paid. 
 
Question 6: What was the compensation they received to date? 
 
Response 6: Not available.  
 
Question 7:  Did the Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority hire any other Real Estate 

Broker Services in the last ten years? 
 
Response 7: No. 
 
Question 8:   If Yes, What was the pricing they submitted? 
 
Response 8: See answer to question 7.  
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Question 9: If yes, to question four what was the compensation on said Real Estate Broker 

Services Contracts? 
 
Response 9: See answer to question 5.  
 
Question 10: The MWAA operating agreement for the rail is 50 years and the immediate Rail 

Project Team (RPT) is 150 people--is there a desired lease/ownership 
commitment period and does the RPT staffing level change over that period? 

 
Response 10: The desired lease term for the Phase 2 office lease is five years with two one-year 

options. Lease/Ownership should be considered as part of the analysis.  Staffing 
may fluctuate during the project period. 

 
Question 11:  Does this project require an occupancy planning professional to develop space 

standards to optimize the efficiency of the buildout? 
 
Response 11: The need for any occupancy planning is unknown until candidate properties have 

been reviewed.  
 
Question 12: Does this project require a construction manager to oversee base building and/or 

interiors construction? 
 
Response 12: The need for construction management oversight cannot be determined until 

candidate properties have been reviewed.  
 
Question 13: Rail Project Team includes Fairfax County employees; does the location need to 

be in Fairfax County? Are there Loudoun County employees with a Loudoun 
County location requirement? 

 
Response 13: As stated in the Statement of Work, the Phase 2 Project office space will need to 

be located along the Phase construction alignment.  The county is not a 
consideration. 

 
Question 14: What is the lease expiration date at 1595 Spring Hill Road? Are there renewal 

rights? What is the holdover penalty? Are there restoration obligations? 
 
Response 14: The lease expiration date is February 28, 2014, for the office space located at 

1593 Spring Hill Road. Yes, there are renewal options which are currently under 
evaluation by staff. The Hold Over penalty is 125% of existing base rental rate for 
first 60 days after expiration of lease term and 150% of existing base rental rate 
for the period thereafter. The tenant will deliver up the premises to the landlord 
broom clean and in good repair and condition, normal wear and tear excepted.  
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Question 15: What is the anticipated Phase 2 completion date? Will the Design Build 
Contractor need 50,000 SF throughout the entire construction process or will their 
requirements gradually decrease? 

 
Response 15: Phase 2 design/build contractor is expected to have a Notice-to-proceed (NTP) in 

July 2013 and an estimated completion date of July 2018, which is 60 months 
from the NTP. The Phase 2 Design-Build contractor will determine their lease 
terms and conditions. Note that contingency and allowance for other tenants such 
as Metro and MWAA will be considered in determining lease duration. 

 
Question 16:  What lease term is the Rail Project Office interested in? 
 
Response 16:  The Phase 2 Rail Project office desires a five year base office lease with two one-

year options. 
 
Question 17:  When does the Rail Project Office want occupancy? 
 
Response 17:  The Phase 2 Rail Project office has a preference for occupancy in May 2013. 
 
Question 18: Is there an expense ceiling on what MWAA is able to pay for this project? 
 
Response 18: The Total base rent for a five (5) year lease is estimated to be $9.2 million or up 

to $13.5 million with two one-year options.  
 
Question 19: Are there any special build-out requirements? 
 
Response 19: The selected Tenant broker will assist the Airport Authority in determining the 

specifications for the office space. 
 
Question 20: Are there any requirements for meeting, training and conference spaces? If so, 

how many people need to be accommodated and how frequent are these spaces 
utilized? 

 
Response 20: The selected Tenant broker will assist the Airport Authority in determining the 

specifications for the office space. 
 
Question 21: Does MWAA have a preference on receiving its commission credit in the form of 

rental abatement, additional improvement monies, additional services (e.g., 
occupancy planning, construction management, FF&E, etc.)? 

 
Response 21: All of the above may be considered, starting with space planning and build-out 

allowance.  Remaining abatement funds will be applied to rental abatement. 
 
Question 22: How close to the construction site does the office need to be to "monitor" 

construction? 
 
Response 22: The selected Tenant broker will assist the Airport Authority in determining the 

location for the office space. 
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Question 23: If MWAA and the Design Build Contractor sign separate leases, will the Design 

Build Contractor be obligated to use the real estate broker of MWAA? 
 
Response 23: The Airports Authority does not intend to require the Design Build Contractor to 

use the same Tenant Broker as the Airports Authority. 
 
Question 24: Will you be using a real estate attorney to assist with lease negotiations? 
 
Response 24: Yes, the Airports Authority has a real estate attorney. 
 
Question 25: The RFP does not ask for ancillary services. Are you interested in hearing about 

other service lines? In particular, is Construction Management of interest? This 
individual would assist with the pricing of tenant construction, overall project 
budget, negotiating architectural contracts etc. 

 
Response 25: The need for and use of ancillary services cannot be determined until candidate 

properties are reviewed. 
 
Question 26: You state this is a 5 year contract. Are there other assignments that could be 

included beyond this particular solicitation? 
 
Question 26: As stated in the Scope of Work, the selected Tenant broker will assist in 

establishing on office lease for the Phase 2 Rail Project team. 
 
Question 27: Will there be oral presentations? 
 
Response 27: Oral presentations are not planned at this time, but the Authority reserves the right 

to conduct them should the need arise. 
 
Question 28: Who will be the decision makers on the ultimate Contractor? 
 
Response 28: The proposals will be evaluated in accordance with the Authority’s Contracting 

Manual, 3rd Edition.   The identity of review panel members is confidential. 
 
Question 29: Does the geographic area include Loudoun County along Route 28, i.e. Waxpool 

Road and Pacific Boulevard? 
 
Response 29: The selected Tenant broker will assist the Airport Authority in determining the 

location for the office space. 
 
Question 30: While the first page states there is 0% DBE participation goal, a considerable 

amount of the RFP address DBE inclusion. Is there a benefit of including modest 
DBE participation goals? Any credit given? 

 
Response 30: DBE participation is not part of the Evaluation Criteria. 
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Question 31: Will all potential contractors see all the questions and answers submitted by all 

parties? 
 
Response 31: We will post the Questions and Responses document to the website.  Once posted, 

an e-mail notification will be sent to all registered Plan holders. 
 
Question 32: The RFP spends a lot of time re: DBE, MBE & WBE companies.  Understanding 

these are not grounds for evaluation, is there any benefit to a bidder who 
qualifies?  If so, what percentage of recent awards were to companies with any or 
all of these types of businesses as partners. 

 
Response 32: DBE participation is not part of the Evaluation Criteria. 
 
Question 33: Does the Authority need to move?  We see the request to be located near Phase II.  

If it is more cost effective to stay in place, will they consider it? 
 
Response 33: The current landlord may participate in the solicitation for Phase 2 office space. 
 
Question 34: What is the initial anticipated headcount for the Rail Project Office and what, if 

any, growth or contraction is anticipated during the duration of the Phase II 
project. 

 
Response 34: The selected Tenant broker will assist the Airport Authority in determining the 

specifications for the office space.  See answer to question 10. 
 
Question 35: What is the preferred interior office layout of the Rail Office (offices vs cubicles, 

etc…) 
 
Response 35: The selected Tenant broker will assist the Airport Authority in determining the 

specifications for the office space. 
 
Question 36: Is the Rail Offices new bldg require to be visible from the Toll Rd itself 
 
Response 36: The selected Tenant broker will assist the Airport Authority in determining the 

specifications for the office space.  Visibility from the Toll Road is not a 
requirement. 

 
Question 37: Does the Rail Office require exterior signage on the new building? 
 
Response 37: The selected Tenant broker will assist the Airport Authority in determining the 

specifications for the office space. 
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Question 38: What are the typical hours of operation for the Rail Office?  Is night and weekend 
work anticipated? 

 
Response 38: The selected Tenant broker will assist the Airport Authority in determining the 

specifications for the office space. 
 
Question 39: Does the Rail Office require a large auditorium or public meeting space located 

within the new building? 
 
Response 39: The selected Tenant broker will assist the Airport Authority in determining the 

specifications for the office space. 
 
Question 40: What technical/ upgraded infrastructure (data center rooms, raised floor, etc…) is 

required in the new Rail Office? 
 
Response 40: The selected Tenant broker will assist the Airport Authority in determining the 

specifications for the office space. 
 
Question 41: Is there a requirement to park oversized work vehicles at the new building? 
 
Response 41: The selected Tenant broker will assist the Airport Authority in determining the 

specifications for the office space. 
 
Question 42: Regarding Sec 2B of The Statement of Work, will the Design Build Contractor be 

required to lease space in the same building and under the same terms and 
conditions as the Rail Office or will they handle that project themselves? 

 
Response 42: The Design-Build contractor will lease directly and negotiate their own terms 

with landlord for space in the same building or complex. 
 
Question 43: Is there a pre-approved budget for the Rail Office already determined? 
 
Response 43: The Total base rent for a five (5) year lease is estimated to be $9.2 million or up 

to $13.5 million with two one-year options.  
 
Question 44: Who from MWAA will be evaluating the proposals and what are their roles and 

responsibilities within the contemplated project? 
 
Response 44: The proposals will be evaluated in accordance with the Authority’s Contracting 

Manual, 3rd Edition.  See answer to question 28.  
 
Question 45: Will MWAA require project management services to facilitate the design, 

construction and relocation into the new Rail Office? 
 
Response 45: The need for project management services cannot be determined until candidate 

properties have been reviewed. 
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Question 46: If any construction is required for interior fit out, will MWAA handle this 

construction itself or require the landlord to perform? 
 
Response 46: The Airports Authority intends for the landlord to provide any construction and/or 

fit out services, subject to the terms negotiated in the Lease, as assisted by the 
tenant broker. 

 
Question 47: Does MWAA have a form lease it will require landlords to utilize or is it 

acceptable to use the landlords lease agreement form? 
 
Response 47: The selected Tenant broker will assist the Airport Authority in determining the 

specifications for the office lease.  We have previously negotiated the landlord’s 
lease agreement pro-forma, but are open to suggestions concerning suggesting an 
alternative form.  We do not presently have a pro-forma lease. 

 
Question 48: Will MWAA utilize outside legal counsel to represent the Authority during lease 

negotiations? 
 
Response 48: Yes, the Airports Authority has a real estate attorney. 
 
Question 49: Is there adequate office space on Airport land available to the Authority to house 

this requirement? 
 
Response 49: No. 
 
Question 50: Please confirm the expected lease term will be through the duration of Phase II 

construction only or is there a need for this office beyond completion of Phase II.  
 
Response 50:  The Phase 2 Rail Project office desires a five year base office lease with two one-

year options. 
 
Question 51: In Attachment 2, Evaluation Criteria and Proposal Submission Requirement, the 

solicitation requests that bids “Provide resumes with names, titles, education and 
real estate experience.”  Is supplying the years a Broker possesses of real estate 
experience compliant? 

 
Response 51:  Years of broker experience would be a part of the required submission. 
 
Question 52: In Attachment 3, Federal Requirements Addendum, Question 3: The addendum 

asks for compliance for procuring steel, iron or manufactured products, buses, 
other rolling stock and associated equipment. We do not expect to procure any of 
the following in performing the scope of work requested. Is N/A a compliant 
response? 

 
Response 52:  Yes. 


